
 
 

SCRUTINY : LEARNING AND LGES 
MEETING 

 
4.00 pm MONDAY, 20TH JUNE, 2022 

 

REMOTE MEETING - MICROSOFT TEAMS 
 

A Pre-Meeting will take place prior to this meeting and a separate invitation 
will be sent from Scrutiny Support Officers to Committee Members only  

 
 

Please note that today’s meeting will be recorded.  
  

This recording may be broadcast on the Authority’s internet 
 

All attendees will be in view of the camera and, by attending you are consenting to being 
filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings being used as outlined 

above. 

 

 
 

This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 
member of the public requiring information should contact the department on 

(01685) 725284 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk. 
 

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can 
be found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers. 

 

AGENDA 
 

1. Apologies for absence   

2. Declarations of Interest (including whipping 
declarations)  

 

 Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 

 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct 
 
Note: 
 

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and 

 
(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 

as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave 

Work Programme 

3. Scrutiny Work Programme 2022-2023   

 Have we got the right issues in the right way at the 
right time and place? 
 

5 - 16 

4. Scrutiny Referrals   

Reports 

5. Estyn Inspection of Local Government Education 
Services (LGES)  

 

 To consider the attached report 
 

17 - 32 

Reflections 

6. Report Recommendations   

 Did we address the recommendations in each 
report and how have we added value? 
 

 

7. Feedback on Scrutiny Activities   

 Any outstanding actions?  Feedback from 
workshops / task and finish groups / enquiry days, 
etc. 
 

 



8. Any other business deemed urgent by the Chair   
 

  
 
COMPOSITION: 

 
Councillors:     L Mytton (Chair) 

                         G Lewis (Vice-Chair) 
 

 Councillors: C Tovey, C Jones, J Scriven and 
A Williams-Price 
 
Co-optees: J Beard, F Whitefoot and C Brown 

  
together with appropriate officers 
 

 
If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 

democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 

 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Forward Work Programme 2022/23 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1. To provide Scrutiny Members with the draft Forward Work Programme Framework 

for consideration to develop its work programme and to prepare in advance of the 
next scrutiny committee meeting. 

 
1.2. To agree the forward plan for meetings prior to the summer recess, including the 

agenda for this first scrutiny committee meeting (after the local elections). 
 
1.3. To remind Scrutiny Committee members that they need to consider the requirements 

of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 in all aspects of scrutiny 
work.   

 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
2.1 Scrutiny Members consider appendix 3 and use this when planning the forward work 

programme.   
 
2.2 Scrutiny Members agree the Forward Work Programme be developed and brought 

to the next Scrutiny Committee meeting.   
 
2.3 Scrutiny Members agree items in the Forward Work Programme up to summer 

recess.   
 

 
 

Date Written 13th June 2022 

Report Author Scrutiny Section 

Service Area Scrutiny 

Exempt/Non-Exempt Non-Exempt 

Committee Date 20th June 2022 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1. The Council is continuing its recovery, transformation and improvement (RTI) 

journey.  A critical part of this is the Governance Improvement Programme.  A key 
element of this is the Scrutiny function and how we continue to improve it.  
  

3.2. As part of this improvement and throughout the scrutiny training for Elected Members 
(Adding value through Overview and Scrutiny) it was proposed to use ‘Making a 
difference together’ as an overarching aim for the Scrutiny function.   
 

3.3. It is vital that the scrutiny function adds value and supports the Council in achieving 
the outcomes needed by our residents.  The critical friend challenge provided by 
Scrutiny can positively impact upon achieving the outcomes needed by our 
residents.   
 

3.4. The Council has worked with the Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA) and 
external experts to do this.  In doing so, key principles have been used and models 
developed.  The four principles of scrutiny (as set out by the Centre for Governance 
and Scrutiny) are listed below: 
 

• Provides constructive, critical friend challenge to executive policymakers and 
decision-takers 

• Amplifies and enables the voice and concerns of the public and its 
communities 

• Led and owned by independent minded Councillors on behalf of the public 

• Drives improvement in public services 
 

3.5. Building on this, the Council has developed the ‘4S’s’ and ‘4R’s’ models.  The 4 S’s 
model underpins good scrutiny.  These four elements of Structure, Systems, Skills 
and Support are shown in more detail below: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



3.6. The 4 R’s model sets out how good scrutiny should work, as such can be used to 
develop a forward work programme.  The 4 R’s are: Right Issue; Right Way; Right 
Time; Right Place.  The figure below provides some examples against each of the 4 
R’s.  this forms the basis of the Forward Work Programme Framework.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3.7. Scrutiny Committees are required to prepare and keep under review a programme 
for their work.  By reviewing and prioritising issues, Members are able to ensure that 
the work programmes deliver a member-led agenda and add value to delivery of 
outcomes for our residents.   
 

3.8. The attached forward work programme (appendix 1) identifies the topics and issues 
under consideration by Scrutiny prior to the summer recess.  Further items will be 
established prior to Scrutiny meetings in September.  This will allow Scrutiny 
Members time to view the Cabinet Forward Plan, better understand public voice and 
consider corporate objectives outcomes and priorities (including priorities for 
improvement as part of the RTI Plan).  Quarterly technical meetings will be used to 
do this.   
 

3.9. The opportunity for additional subjects to be identified and included on the 
programme is built in.  The Forward Work Programme is a live document and will be 
developed further for future meetings. 
 

3.10. The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 requires each Public Service 
Board (PSB) and Council to work with their communities to develop local objectives.  
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council (MTCBC) and the regional PSB have acted 
on this.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



3.11. MTCBC has four local Well-being Objectives, each having clear outcomes that will 
help the Council to respond to local community needs and contribute to the seven 
national Well-being goals.  The four local Well-being objectives and priority outcomes 
are: 
 

Well-being Theme Objective Primary Outcome 

Best Start 

 

Children and young people get the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they need to be successful learners 
and confident individuals. 

Improve the educational outcomes 
for all children and young people 

Working Life 

 

People feel supported to develop the skills required to meet 
the needs of businesses, with a developing, safe infrastructure 
which makes Merthyr Tydfil an attractive destination. 

Developing the environment and 
infrastructure for businesses to 
flourish 

Environmental 

 Well-being 

Communities protect, enhance, and promote our 
environment and countryside. 

Maximise the amount of material 
and resources reused and recycled in 
line with the waste hierarchy 

Living Well 

 

People are empowered to live independently within their 
communities, where they are safe and enjoy good physical 
and mental health. 

Ensure people are able to live 
independently and safely within their 
communities 

 
 

3.12. MTCBC has developed an ‘Our Shared Vision’ document (please see appendix 2).  
This makes the connections from the seven national Well-being Goals to regional 
PSB objectives to local objectives and priorities for improvement.  When considered 
with directorates strategies-on-a-page (SOAPs), service area plans and business 
improvement plans (BIPs) a golden thread is created that can be extended down to 
individual plans.  This helps members of staff see how they are contributing to the 
Act and the ‘Wales We Want’ and will assist Scrutiny Members better understand the 
connections with the Act.   
 

3.13. The Scrutiny Committee is encouraged to identify issues that reflect these objectives 
and priority outcomes and/or are a priority for local people and communities.  If a 
matter is a recurring issue for the people Councillors represent, the likelihood is that 
it is something that Scrutiny should consider.  The more relevant the issue is to local 
committees then the greater the likelihood of engaging those communities in the 
scrutiny process and of producing outcomes that will be visible to those communities 
represented.  

 
3.14. The work programme is a dynamic document and is reviewed at every meeting of 

Scrutiny to ensure that its contents are still relevant and will add value to delivering 
our objectives and improving outcomes for residents.  At each meeting, Scrutiny 
Members will be asked to agree the agenda items for their next meetings and in 
preparation are recommended to following the Forward Work Programme 
Framework in appendix 3.   
 
 
 

Performance and Scrutiny Team 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



APPENDICES 
 
Appendix 1 – Forward Work Programme 
 
Appendix 2 – Our Shared Vision 
 
Appendix 3 – Forward Work Programme Framework 
 

 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

 
Statement of Well-being 
and the Corporate Well-
being Plan 
 
 

 
March 2022 

 
Council Website 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9



Appendix 1 – Forward Work Programme 
 
Learning and LGES Scrutiny 
 
Work Programme up to September 2022 
 
Please note that this initial version covers items/issues up to the summer recess 2022 due to this being the start of a new electoral cycle.  The model 
for work programme planning set out in this report will be used in developing this going forward.   

 
Date / 
Timing 

Overarching 
Item/Issue 

Why is this on the work 
programme? 

Cabinet Member & 
Officer 

How will this be 
scrutinised? 

Scrutiny Focus – What 
are we trying to achieve? 

20th 
June 
2022 

Scrutiny 
Forward Work 
Programme 

Link to Well-being Objectives, 
priorities for improvement and 
ensuring public voice: 

• Best Start to Life 

• RTI Plan - Raising 
Aspirations Raising 
Standards Strategy 

• N/A – Chair of 
Education 
Scrutiny 

Venue: Council 
Chamber/MS Teams 

Adding value through critical 
friend challenge and ensuring 
a robust work programme is in 
place.  This will adhere to the 
4 principles of scrutiny and 
4R’s model.   

Scrutiny Type: 
Committee style meeting 

ESTYN Report Link to Well-being Objectives, 
priority for improvement, 
collaboration and 
recommendations from ESTYN 
(January 2022): 

• Best Start to Life 

• RTI Plan - Raising Ambitions 
Raising Standards Strategy 

• Cabinet Member - 
Councillor 
Michelle Jones 

• Director of 
Education – Sue 
Walker 

• CSC 
Representative – 
Betsan O’Connor 

Venue: Council 
Chamber/MS Teams 

Adding value through critical 
friend challenge and 
suggestions in considering the 
proposed actions to meet the 
recommendations received 
from regulators.  This will 
inform a Council report that is 
being presented to Council on 
the 6th July 2022.   

Scrutiny Type: 
Committee style meeting 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 10



Appendix 2 – Our Shared Vison 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 11



Appendix 3 – Forward Work Programme Framework 
 
Is this the Right Issue?  What is the Right Way to scrutinise this issue? 

Does this issue affect a number of people living, working and learning in 

Merthyr Tydfil? – i.e. Is it of significant public interest? 

 
Scrutiny Committee Meeting or over a number of meetings 

Does this issue impact on delivering our objectives, outcomes and 

priorities?  Including impacts on budgets (sustainability). 

 Task and Finish Group (this needs to have a set timescale and scope to 

avoid delays and expectation, perhaps set a timescale of around 8 weeks) 

Will scrutiny involvement make a significant difference and achieve 

tangible outcomes? – i.e. To what extent will scrutiny add value?   

 
Working Group Meetings 

How will performance improve? How does this issue link to an area of 

poor performance? 

 
Enquiry Day 

Will scrutinising this issue cause duplication?  Workshop(s) 

To what extent is the Council likely to review the relevant policy area 

(allowing scrutiny recommendations to influence the new direction to be 

taken)? 

 Joint Scrutiny activities (over more than one Scrutiny Committee) or 

maybe through joint overview and scrutiny committees (JOSCs) with a 

wider scope than just MTCBC (e.g. regional Cwm Taf JOSC) 

To what level is the issue of concern to Members, Partners, Stakeholders 

and/or the Community? 

 
Site visit and walk through 

Are there adequate resources available to do the scrutiny well?  To what extent does this issue need specialist advice/detail? 

 
 Seeking the views of service users, carers and/or the general public 

(public calls for information) 

  To what extent is the issue focussed enough to lead to effective scrutiny? 

 
 

P
age 12



When is the Right Time to scrutinise this issue?  Where is the Right Place to scrutinise this issue? 

Planning Stage  Council Chamber 

Pre-decision  Another Council Venue 

Post-decision  In the Community 

Review Stage  On site (e.g. project site, if safe to do so) 

Annual Basis  Joint Scrutiny Committee (or more than one Committee) 

Regular Basis (e.g. quarterly) 
 At a Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (JOSC outside MTCBC and 

with external input) 

When is the best time in the year? (Think when is too early or too late)  Officer scrutiny (e.g. Quarterly Performance Improvement Reviews) 

  Other (please state) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 13



When stepping through the four R’s above, it is important to ask the questions below 
to ensure that preparation and planning will lead to effective and efficient scrutiny. 

 
Q).  What is the specific role of Scrutiny and what are we trying to achieve? 

 

 
o To determine if performance levels are acceptable in relation to a particular 

service. 
 

o To determine if a specific policy is fit for purpose. 
 

o To satisfy itself that the Council is working well with its partners in tackling a 
major issue. 
 

o To gather the views of specific stakeholders as part of a scrutiny 
investigation/review. 
 

o To explore possible solutions to an issue and close the loop by effective and 
timely reporting/escalation. 

 

 
Q).  What outcomes are Scrutiny seeking from the consideration of this issue? 

 

 
o To consider the impacts of proposed budgets and make suggestions to Cabinet 

regarding the proposed budget’s ability to deliver the priorities of the Council. 
 

o Identification of any causes for concern, note successes and report to Cabinet 
accordingly. 

 
o To receive overview presentations to summarise a report(s) or feedback on 

previous actions or wider scrutiny function. 
 

o To gain an understanding of, and to comment on, a policy/strategy.  Scrutiny 
should add value to the development of the policy/strategy. 
 

o To explore ideas around service improvement and/or the setting of budgets while 
considering the pressures facing services.  This also helps provide an overview 
of the policy framework.  Scrutiny should add value to the process.   
 

o For Scrutiny to gain an overview and refresh their knowledge of the Well-being 
objectives/other plans/other strategies/policies and priorities.  Scrutiny should add 
value to the process. 
 

o Improve in service delivery and add value. 
 
o To ensure we are adding value, be specific; it is better to scrutinise a small 

number of issues well than not be able to scrutinise a number of issues that were 
originally planned.   

 
 
 

Page 14



Q).  What information/data does Scrutiny need to fulfil this role/achieve this 
outcome? 
 

What is Scrutiny trying to do?  You might be trying to do some or all of the following e.g., 
establish facts, gather opinions, provide critical friend challenge and/or explore new 
ideas/solutions. 

 
Q).  Who should be invited to the Scrutiny to provide the information/data? 
 

Depending on the information/data you need, you might want to hear from a range of 
people – e.g. Cabinet Members, Senior Officers, Service users, Carers and/or External 
partners (such as the Police, Strategic Partners, etc.). 

 
Q).  Does Scrutiny need to ask for written representations? 
 

Scrutiny may wish to pose questions to the Cabinet Member/Directorate/External Partner 
etc. prior to the meeting.  This may help in instances when Scrutiny is looking for something 
specific to be addressed.  This will assist whoever is attending to ensure that they have the 
information/data/answer ready for the meeting. 

 
Q).  Which meeting format would be most appropriate for the item and for the people 
that will be invited to attend? 
 

Due to the outbreak of the Covid-19 global pandemic, all scrutiny committees were held via 
Microsoft Teams.  This decision was taken to ensure the safety of our Members, Officers 
and all others in attendance.  Currently, the Council is in the processes of finalising the use 
of a hybrid system for meetings (with a protocol for this being developed).  This will be 
reviewed in line with any updates and advice from U.K. and Welsh Government.   

 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 

 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Estyn Inspection of Local Government Education 
Services (LGES) 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 This report gives an overview of the Estyn report following the inspection undertaken 

in January 2022. 
 
1.2 The areas of strengths and areas for development are outlined. 
 
1.3 Proposed Actions to meet the Recommendations and Areas for Development within 

the report are outlined. 
 
1.4 Specific information regarding support from the Central South Consortium (CSC) is 

shared as an Appendix. 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 The content of this report is discussed and noted. 
 
2.2 Members consider if the Actions proposed will address the Recommendations and 

Areas for Development within the report. 
 
2.3 Members consider if there are other aspects of attendance they wish to scrutinise. 
 

 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Estyn, Her Majesty’s Inspectorate for Education and Training in Wales re-

commenced inspections of local authorities in Autumn 2022. 
 
3.2 The three Inspection Areas of the LGES Framework are: 

• IA1 – Outcomes; 

• IA2 – Education Services; and  

• IA3 – Leadership and Management. 

Date Written 18th May 2022 

Report Author Sue Walker 

Service Area Education 

Committee Date 20th June 2022 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



3.3 Under IA2, Estyn sets local inspection questions that are relevant to each local 
authority.  Local inspection questions focus on education services that relate to the 
local authority’s current strategic priorities or result from information that Estyn has 
about education services in the local authority. 

 
3.4 For this inspection these were: 

 

• How well does the local authority work with the regional consortium to ensure that 
school improvement strategies are targeted to meet the individual needs of 
schools? 

• How well do local authority services work together to reduce the impact of poverty 
and disadvantage on pupils’ learning? 

• How effective is provision for pupils with social, emotional and behavioural needs? 

• How well does the local authority use youth work to support young people? 
 

4.0 WHERE WE WERE 
 
4.1 The local authority’s last inspection was in 2012.  
 

4.2 The local authority was judged to require Special Measures. 
 

4.3 Following a period of intense scrutiny and support from an Improvement Board the 
local authority was removed from this category of follow-up after a monitoring visit in 
2016. 

 

4.4 Education was identified as an area of concern within the Assurance Board report of 
2019. 

 

4.5 Education is one of the key priorities within the Council’s Recovery, Transformation 
and Improvement Plan. 

 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW 
 
5.1 The inspection identified a number of positives within the Local Government 

Education Services, which include: 
 

• Clear vision – articulated through the Raising Aspirations Raising Standards 
(RARS) Strategy  

• Recognition by the authority of the need to strengthen education services and 
actions to support that 

• Partnership working 

• Schools Budget Forum 

• Youth work (with a Case Study being prepared for publication) 

• Merthyr Tydfil Borough Wide Youth Forum 

• Safeguarding processes 

• Response to Covid-19 

• Relationship with schools and also with CSC 
  

Page 18



 
5.2 There are four key recommendations. 
 

• Strengthen processes to monitor and evaluate progress against actions in 
education plans 

• Improve the quality of scrutiny of education services  

• Strengthen the oversight of the impact of provision on wellbeing and standards for 
learners with social, emotional and behavioural difficulties and ensure that these 
learners are not disadvantaged by the extended use of part-time education 
provision  

• Ensure that provision for Welsh-medium secondary education meets the future 
needs of the pupils of Merthyr Tydfil 

 
5.3 There are other areas for development within the body of the report. 
 

• Link the work of the Poverty Agenda more closely with Education  

• Monitor more closely the use of reduced timetables within schools 

• Improve quality of provision for Pupil Referral Unit 

• Improve attendance levels 

• Strengthen the review of services provided by CSC 
 

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE 
 
6.1 The vision of the RARS and the commitments within that document need to be 

realised. 
 
6.2 All children and young people making appropriate progress along the school 

curriculum. 
 
6.3 All young people leaving statutory education with the skills and qualifications they 

need to access further education, employment or training. 
 

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT 
 
7.1 Revise current business plans to reflect the actions of the report. 
 
7.2 Produce a feasibility paper on provision for Welsh Medium secondary education. 
 
7.3 Actions already undertaken include 

• Session with Team Leaders on self-evaluation and more intelligent use of data 
o Further session planned in July on setting success criteria for 

improvement 

• Session with Headteachers and CSC over impact of CSC work 
o Detailed report on actions of CSC (see Appendix 1) 

• Attendance Improvement Plan (see Appendix 2) 

• Plan to address Education Other Than At School (EOTAS) drafted (see Appendix 
3) 

• Corporate training programme for Scrutiny in place. 
  

Page 19



8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO RAISING ASPIRATIONS RAISING STANDARDS 
STRATEGY 

 
8.1 The contents of this report relate to the following RARS Themes and Goals. 

 

• Partnership & Collaboration, Pandemic Recovery 

• Systems Governance, Learner Wellbeing, Improving Achievement and 
Progression 

 

9.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 
 

9.1 The contents of this report relate to the following Wellbeing Objectives: 
 

• Best Start to Live 

• Living Well 
 
 
 
 
SUE WALKER 
DIRECTOR OF EDUCATION 

COUNCILLOR MICHELLE JONES 
PORTFOLIO LEAD  

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

   
 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

 

 

Page 20



Appendix 1 

WORKING TOGETHER – CENTRAL SOUTH CONSORTIUM AND MERTHYR TYDFIL CBC 

Context 
The following function map describes 7 key roles that are collaborated on as schools, LA and 
regional consortium. It notes how each function contributes to the implementation of the RARS 
strategy. 
 

1. Conditions for Improvement, Evaluation and Accountability.  This is about the culture of the 
organisation – will include CSC, LA and council corporate attitudes to improvement and 
accountability. CSC self-improving schools, Systematic LA which uses powers, Supportive region, 
clarity of expectation re all reforms including ALN, competence 

2. Expectations.  These are the standards set by LA – ie. The expectations re Literacy, numeracy, 
digital competence, wellbeing. These will be unique to the LAs context but align with policy 
expectations and reform 

3. Transparency.  This is about making sure citizens and stakeholders will know what to expect at 
schools and service level.  Also, how to get there & how systems for accountability and 
improvement and escalation works, eg schools will share SIP online, or report to GB precis?  The 
plans in place to deliver improvement.  

4. Improvement. This is the core work of the region. Specific strategies being used/ practised; this 
will include the work of CSC as IPs and strategic team. It will also include support form LA for HR, 
Finance etc Support for GBs especially important 

5. Monitoring. The monitoring arrangements give LAs confidence that the Expectations are met or 
not. Some delegated to CSC – NOT ALL. How monitoring is caried out is dependant on culture 
and conditions. Supporting capacity building and self improving schools. Or top down approach 
to compliance.  

6. Accountability. Perf mgt of all, including HT, service level performance management, Director, 
CSC, Democratic accountability – Council and scrutiny, GB – via SIP Improvement Priorities. Any 
external Boards or inspection also here. Joint Committee for CSC work.  

7. Intervention. Clarity on escalation arrangements, Powers of Intervention, SCC guidance and 
using statutory powers/ gaining Ministerial support for intervention.  

 
Estyn noted in its report earlier this year, the strengths of the joint work and how it has developed 
and improved. Clarity and constant communication has helped but there is more work to do. The 
next stage of our work is to improve the way impact of any work is evaluated.  
 
Recent Welsh Government guidance has changed what is reported and moves from the use of data 
for accountability to that of evaluation and improvement.  
 
Evaluation 
Specific criteria has been used to highlight progress and the school’s own capacity to drive its own 
improvement based on secure self-evaluation. Existing accountability arrangements have been used 
to reduce the burden on schools. The School Development Plan is the key improvement planning 
document for schools. It is a statutory document. Identifying the right priorities through mature and 
thorough self-evaluation is the first step, with identification of priorities next. The LA then sign 
priorities off and accept them as appropriate for the school. The school’s progress in achieving 
these are monitored by Improvement Partners. Schools also access support to deliver its priorities 
from CSC and from other schools, as necessary. 
 
  

Page 21



LA LEVEL INFORMATION 

* federations counted as 1 

SER Fair 
reflection 

 Priorities 
appropriate 

Signed off by 
LA 

 On track 

2020-21 2021-22 2021-22 2021-22  2021-22 

18 yes 
5 partly 
4 no 

23 yes 
2 partly 
2 no 

26 yes 
1 no 

Yes all  24 yes 
1 partly 
2 no 

Intervention 
to support 
from IPs. 
Professional 
dialogue, 
challenge, 
monitoring.  

 Where schools have required 
specific intervention LA and 
CSC have combined to 
provided specific support.  

 Significant 
support 
where 
required here. 

 

Strong schools, clear capacity 
in depth at leadership level 

Clear aspects strong, and 
sharing 

New leaders, changing 
leadership 

6 11 18 

17 from 26  

 

Enhanced support 
2020-21 

Enhanced support 
2021-22 

Risks high Other 

12 6 4 15 (task this term) 

*all secondary 
schools, also moving 
forward with post 
covid complexities to 
new academic year 

*factors include 
changes to leadership 
building strengths or 
otherwise 

Linked to new 
appointments, gaps in 
knowledge and need 
post covid, change 
curriculum, ALN, 
capacity to self 
improve 

Improvement and 
quality systems and 
impact on T&L; scale 
of changes; capacity; 
recruitment; 
resilience; leadership 
(GB and SLT). 

 
Inputs 
At these stages there is IP intervention and support – dialogue around SDP, challenge and support, 
review data, range of evaluation held by school – sampling own judgement, verifying first hand 
evidence.  
 
Impact 
*improved evaluation and capacity to identify own challenges 
*strengthened capacity of leadership team to take action in school 

Page 22



Appendix 2 

Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council, along with all Welsh Councils, has been given a Welsh 

Government Attendance Grant to support pupil attendance.  

The grant of £133,722 came with areas of focus as set out below.  

- Enhanced Attendance Support for year 11 (learners not attending) 

- Enhanced attendance support years 7-9 

- Trauma Informed Schools and Communities 

- Community Focused Schools Work 
 

As well as for the areas above, the grant has been used to target some additional specific areas of 

need, referenced in more detail below.  The grant ends at the end of the summer term when an 

evaluation of spend will be provided to Welsh Government and impact on 21/22 attendance data is 

considered. (see attached document for detailed plan) 

It is worth noting that this grant has enabled the department to think outside the box and has been 

a very welcome addition to the Attendance Action Plan.  Whilst the plan is focused largely on the use 

of data and processes, the grant has allowed for a level of innovation in seeking to engage pupils at 

all levels of attendance. 

 

Trauma Informed Schools – The funding has ensured that all Merthyr Tydfil schools are able to 

become Trauma Informed in their practice.  

Reward systems - A number of primary schools have been provided with book vending machines to 

enable the rewarding of good attendance. This has seen immediate benefit in those schools with 

engagement and improved attendance. 

Additional LSA capacity – Afon Taff High school are using nine of their Service Level Agreements to 

work with ten pupils each, ensuring an early first day response and a coordinated approach to 

encouraging attendance. This includes closer engagement of families.  

Bespoke arrangements - additional translation provision was made available to engage with a family 

to resolve attendance issues and engage in education. 

Community Focused Schools – Schools will be provided with additional funding for the work of FLOs. 

Funding has also been made available to the Exchange and Place2Be to provide courses for parents 

in how to support their child/children. 

Additional Education Welfare Service capacity - Additional capacity has been provided to two 

schools and the pupil referral unit to address attendance concerns and work with the settings to 

bring about improved attendance. 

 

Page 23



 
2021-22 Attendance Action Plan 

 
 

Subject: Attendance 

Start Date: November 2021 

Duration of Plan: November 2021 – December 2022 

Officers: Sarah Bowen/Adele Stacey  

Purpose: To raise levels of attendance  
 

• Improved attendance rates across all sectors 

• Reduction in the number of persistent absentees 

• Increase the strategic awareness and support of all partners regarding the importance of attendance 

Background: Regular attendance at school is fundamental to achieving the ambitions set out in the authority’s ‘Raising Aspirations and Raising Standards 
Strategy’. 
A mixed economy model for resourcing activities to improve attendance has operated in the Local Authority area in recent years. Funding 
for attendance management activity has been given directly to schools under the scheme of delegation and a Service Level Agreement 
(SLA) has been provided for those schools that wished to buy-in the support of the local Education Welfare Service (EWS). EWS is part of 
MTCBC’s Education Inclusion Service (EIS), and the SLA does not cover the statutory duties that are delivered to schools. 
The COVID pandemic and the Stay-at-Home rules issued to schools have had a profound impact on attendance and relevant services. EWS 
has evolved into a service that is now also focused on wellbeing and welfare-checks as well as on helping schools to improve attendance 
and punctuality, reduce exclusions and supporting pupil wellbeing. 

 
Direct link to SER priorities/RTI projects/RARS Commitments to Actions 

• SER- improve outcomes  

• RTI-Best Start to Life 

• RARS- Partnership & Collaboration - Goal- Supporting Leaner's Health & Wellbeing, Improving Achievement and Progression   
 

 
  

P
age 24



 

Action 
For 

Recommendation 
Planned Actions By Whom Date Update 

LA Further develop the strategic use of 

data at school and LA level. 

- Delivering training on SIMS attendance modules 

for school attendance leads. 

- Use attendance information to identify 

trends/areas of concern/good practice to inform 

planning/actions. 

- Review current attendance reports. 

AP/ES/ 
GM 

07/22 
 
07/22 

- Attendance training offered 
to schools Summer Term 2. 

- LA Internal data protocol 
established.  

- Schools Missed Marks 
Protocol to be developed to 
support a robust school 
approach to ensuring 
registered are completed 
accurately. 
 

LA Consider how targets are set across all 

schools to support the improvement of 

attendance at LA level. 

 

- Re-establish the setting of school targets that 

would move MTCBC closer to the mean 

attendance for all children in Wales. 

- Ensure realistic and aspirational targets are set as 

part of the attendance audit. 

- Consider how to support target setting at a 

school-level based on a raising standards model. 

(Individual student targets can be used to meet 

whole school targets and allow for rapid 

intervention) 

- Ensure CSC engagement in target setting process. 

AP/GM 07/22 Target setting to take place 
in second half of the summer 
term in line with Attendance 
handbook. 
Discussions held with JW 
(CSC) to ensure join up with 
schools. 
See below also. 

 Utilise the attendance audit to ensure 

that schools are following good practice 

in relation to practices, policies and 

procedures.  

- Ensure targets for attendance are: 

- consistent with achieving improvement 

- informed by an understanding of individual 

pupils 

- pursued as rigorously as raising standards 

AP/GM 10/22 Realistically stretching LA 
targets to be determined in 
second half of the summer 
term for discussion with 
schools, as per the 
Attendance Handbook. Work 

P
age 25



Action 
For 

Recommendation 
Planned Actions By Whom Date Update 

- Support schools to ensure their policy for 

attendance is clear, consistent and understood by 

key stakeholders 

- Support schools to ensure their attendance policy 

is consistent in application. 

- Support schools to ensure communication 

regarding their attendance policy with key 

stakeholders and especially parents and pupils is 

visible and understood 

- Support schools to ensure arrangements for 

managing attendance are efficient and impactful. 

will then take place in early 
autumn term to support 
schools in agreeing the 
target and informing their 
governors.   
Attendance audit to be 
completed by schools in 
September 22, evaluation 
completed and actions 
determined for discussion 
with individual schools. To 
include reflection of current 
attendance data. 

LA Explore how to integrate trends for 

community schools, localised Team 

Around the Family and cluster-based 

working between schools. 

- Establish appropriate systems to ensure the use 
of localised intelligence to shape work with: 

- Head teachers 
- School staff (FLOs) 
- LA teams (EWO) 
- CSC 
- Children Services and other partners. 

AP/GM 10/22 EWO/FLO Network agenda 
has involved Children’s 
Services and CSC to take 
forward closer working 
arrangements and effective 
use of data. CSC (JW) due to 
attend summer term 2 
meeting.  

LA Review the role of the EWS and the SLA 

to ensure that it remains fit for purpose. 

- Further develop the role of the SEWO in 

attendance accountability meetings 

- Consider how to develop further a cluster 

approach to attendance by focusing support 

geographically (e.g. approach to FPNs).  

- Review SLA at appropriate time. 

AP/GM 07/22  Initial discussions on the 
strategic role of the SEWO 
have taken place and are 
ongoing. A cluster approach 
to attendance will form part 
of development work to be 
discussed as part of the FLO 
Network agenda. Discussions 

P
age 26



Action 
For 

Recommendation 
Planned Actions By Whom Date Update 

will be further developed in 
summer term 2. 
 
SLA will be reviewed at a 
further date. 

LA Consider the notice period 

arrangements for opting in or out of the 

Attendance SLA and ensure timely 

undertaking of performance reviews. 

- Determine whether the notice period for opting 
out of the SLA prior to new SLA needs to change. 

- Ensure any school opting out of the SLA mid SLA 
completes Survey upon leaving.  

- Review current Perception Survey questions and 
finalise. 

AP/GM 07/22 Notice period will be 
considered as part of the 
above review.  
Process in place to ensure 
schools complete leaving 
survey. Survey due to be 
reviewed in summer term 2. 

LA Provide further clarity on the 

responsibilities of schools, LA and 

consortia regarding attendance and 

review and re-present what schools 

receive for opting into the SLA. 

- Prepare an easy access version of expectations to 
share with Head teachers, FLOs and Governors. 

- Ensure engagement of FLO Network with easy 
access version. 

- Ensure engagement with other services regarding 
easy access version.  
 

AS 07/22 Expectations document to 
be prepared in Summer term 
for discussion at FLO 
Network meeting with co-
development of easy access 
version. Dissemination to 
other services to follow. 

LA Use EWO / FLO network meetings to 

ensure that the agenda includes items 

raised by both the Authority and school-

based staff 

- Review agenda of EMW/FLO network meetings 
for standing items following attendance review 
recommendations. 

 

AS 04/22 Agenda reviewed and co-
constructed and will 
continue to reflect need. (eg 
Children’s Services involved 
in May meeting to look at 
how FLO/CS can work more 
closely)  

LA Improve and evolve mechanisms for 

joined up working/approaches between 

- Children’s Services to confirm early indicators of 
vulnerability and what multi-agency support 
could be provided linked those vulnerabilities. 

AS 07/22 Work has commenced with 
engagement from CS at FLO 
network meeting regarding 

P
age 27



Action 
For 

Recommendation 
Planned Actions By Whom Date Update 

Education and Children’s Services to 

ensure that early indicators of pupils 

and families that might benefit from 

multi-agency engagement are 

recognised by school-based staff. 

 

Ensure that appropriate systems are in 

place to enable information to be 

shared between Education and 

Children’s Services.  

- Use the Vulnerable Learner Panel as the 
escalation route for pupils and families that 
would benefit from multi-agency engagement.  

- Ensure schools are aware of the function of 
Vulnerable Learner Panel and Panel processes. 

- Revisit guidance on Neglect as per the Neglect 
Toolkit (co-reviewed with Children’s Services) 

CS drop in sessions. 
Developments ongoing. 
VLP terms of reference 
developed with CS but is 
currently on hold due to lack 
of referrals.  
Discussions held with CS 
regarding the alignment of 
panels.  
Education Neglect policy in 
the process of being 
formulated with CS with a 
view to completion and 
distribution in September 
2022. 

LA Improve the lines of accountability and 

clarity of responsibility for attendance 

between the LA, schools and CSC. 

 

 

- Re-instigate attendance meetings with schools as 
required to support action at school level to 
improve attendance or identify good practice.  

- Share clear expectations of the data analysis that 
schools should carry out to support accountability 
meetings. 

- Feedback from meetings to be shared with EWS 
team/FLO/MER/TAS/ESLT/Scrutiny 

AP/GM Dec 22 To be actioned in the 
Autumn term 2022/23 
following target setting 
process.  

LA/CSC Support the development of strategic 

leadership of attendance at school level 

by considering the commissioning of or 

delivery of training on the strategic 

leadership of attendance. 

- Confirm with Head teachers regarding accessing 
training 

- Identify appropriate staff to attend identified 
training (SLT/Governors etc) 

JW/GM TBC Discussions have taken place 
with CSC regarding this and 
the timing – whether 
appropriate at this juncture.  
Further discussions to be 
held in the summer term.  

P
age 28



Action 
For 

Recommendation 
Planned Actions By Whom Date Update 

LA Develop the role of the EWO / school 

attendance personnel regarding pupil 

transition points to identify and support 

pupils and families who are at risk of 

poor attendance. 

Work with FLOs via the Summer term meetings to 
establish good practice. 
 
Use data to support identification of need to inform 
involvement. 

AS 07/22 Good practice now being 
shared at FLO network 
meetings including co-
construction of agendas. 
Specific god practice on 
transition to be shared in 
summer term FLO Network 
meetings. 

LA Develop Marketing Campaign if funding 

from WG is provided. 

 

Appoint an Attendance Champion to visit schools to 
promote good attendance, undertake home visits and 
to lead on the approaches below 

- A borough wide Attendance Campaign with 
high visibility promotion e.g. on buses, bus 
stops etc 

- Incentives for improved attendance- vouchers, 
pencil cases with attendance slogans 

- Financially enable the worst performing schools 
(depending on funding- 1 per cluster ideally) to 
improve attendance 

- Employ an Attendance Champion to lead on 
this  

AS 04/22 AC appointed. (Share role) 
Working with three schools 
to provide bespoke support 
(Goetre, PRU and Coed y 
Dderwen) 
Discussions ongoing with 
Corporate Comms regarding 
Campaign. Meetings held 
with CL and Town Centre 
Support Officer. 
Incentives provided using 
grant funding.  
 

 
 

P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3 

The recommendation states: 
Strengthen the oversight of the impact of provision on wellbeing and standards for 
learners with social, emotional and behavioural difficulties and ensure that these 
learners are not disadvantaged by the extended use of part-time education provision. 

 

Within the report there are several related comments.  
Report Section Comment 

Summary However, there is a high number of pupils who do not receive full-time 
education for extended periods of time. (relates to Special Tuition) 

 The local authority does not monitor closely enough the use of reduced 
timetables and their impact on pupils’ progress. (relates to reduced 
timetables) 

 The local authority is unable to provide full assurance that the 
extended use of reduced timetables is appropriate for the pupils 
concerned. (relates to reduced timetables) 

Recommendation Strengthen the oversight of the impact of provision on wellbeing and 
standards for learners with social, emotional and behavioural 
difficulties and ensure that these learners are not disadvantaged by the 
extended use of part-time education provision. 

Local Question 3  
(How effective is 
provision for pupils 
with social, emotional 
and behavioural 
needs?) 

However, the systematic evaluation of practices, the impact they have 
on children and young people and how these inform future strategy 
are underdeveloped.  
(relates to building capacity in schools and practices in schools) 
 

 However, in a few areas, systematic evaluation of practices, the impact 
they have on children and young people and how these inform future 
strategy are limited, for example in relation to provision for pupils with 
social, emotional and behavioural difficulties. 
(relates to self-evaluation – (Leadership & Management) 

  
In addressing the recommendation related comments are also addressed.  There are other areas 
of work, identified in our own self-evaluation, that need to be also considered and our planned 
approach ensures that the requirements of both the report and our own identified areas of 
concern are met.  Discussions have taken place with all Headteachers to gain their views relating 
to this recommendation and report. Feedback from that consultation will help shape work going 
forward. 
 
Activities to date and ongoing include: 
- Strengthened processes around placement onto tuition and review of tuition placements. 
- The drafting of a Readiness for Reintegration tool to support timely reintegration. 
- Additional Family Liaison Officer/Education Welfare Officer support provided (as outlined in 

attendance paper). 
- Exploring alternative curriculum opportunities with two schools and the college. 
- Carrying out of a regional survey regarding tuition to learn from good practice elsewhere. 
- Improved systems in place to analyse and evaluate the use of positive handling. 
- The development of a provision map for social, emotional & behavioural needs.  
 

Additional work to the above will be required, specifically relating to a review of the Reduced 

Timetable policy and associated processes to ensuring robust processes are in place going 

forward.  

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Scrutiny Work Programme 2022-2023
	5 Estyn Inspection of Local Government Education Services (LGES)
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3


